
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

December 7, 2022 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 
 

    

AGENDA 
 

I. Call to Order Barbara Sowada 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Our Mission and Vision Taylor Jones 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Barbara Sowada 

III. Minutes (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

IV. Community Communication  Barbara Sowada 

V. Old Business Barbara Sowada 

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Barbara Sowada 

A. Employee Policies (For Review) Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel 

1. Workplace Violence Prevention Policy  

2. Workplace Violence Prevention Program  

B. Medical Staff Privilege Forms (For Review) Kerry Downs, Director of Medical Staff Services 

1. Orthopedic Surgery 

2. Emergency Medicine 

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Taylor Jones 

B. Human Resources Committee  Kandi Pendleton 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Ed Tardoni  

1. Bad Debt (For Action) 

2. I.S. Report 

3. Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Information 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Marty Kelsey  

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

F. Compliance Committee Kandi Pendleton 

G. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Barbara Sowada 

I. Joint Conference Committee Barbara Sowada 

IX. Medical Staff Report Dr. Brianne Crofts, Medical Staff President  

X. Good of the Order           Barbara Sowada 

XI. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix)) Barbara Sowada 

XII. Action Following Executive Session Barbara Sowada 

XIII. Adjourn Barbara Sowada 

1/110



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

2/110



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

November 2, 2022 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on 

November 2, 2022, at 2:00 p.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order.  

 

Dr. Sowada requested a roll call and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees were 

present: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni.  

Excused: Ms. Kandi Pendleton. 

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Brianne 

Crofts, Medical Staff President; and Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel (via telephone). 

 

Dr. Sowada noted the attendance of Mr. Jeff Smith from the Sweetwater County Board of County 

Commissioners and thanked him for attending.   

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Dr. Sowada led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Mr. Kelsey read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson said Ms. Karen Andazola from Planetree International was onsite the previous 

week. She met with staff, attended meetings, and visited with patients. Her first visit was four 

years ago. Ms. Andazola told Ms. Richardson that from the moment she walked in the door last 

week, she could feel the positive culture and was very complimentary of the Hospital and staff. 

Dr. Sowada said she was recently walking into the Hospital and saw someone from Environmental 

Services dusting the top of a vending machine. Dr. Sowada commented on how thorough she was 

being and thanked her for her work. The staff member said she loves to clean and loves to work at 

the Hospital. Dr. Sowada said the cleanliness and attention to detail at our hospital is wonderful. 

Dr. Sowada said Ms. Richardson is going to be on a recorded CEO panel with Mr. Jamie Orlikoff, 

a noted advisor on healthcare and governance. Dr. Sowada congratulated Ms. Richardson for 

bringing MHSC to the forefront. Mr. Jones said a local radio host, Johnny K, speaks very highly 

of the Hospital on the radio regularly and comments on many different areas of the Hospital. Mr. 

Tardoni shared a copy of a receipt he found involving a family member for the delivery of a baby 

in 1946 at the Hospital known at the time as “Wyoming General Hospital.” Dr. Sowada said good 

things are happening here. 

3/110



 

 

Minutes of the November 2, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

 

AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Kelsey. 

Motion carried.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the October 5, 2022, regular meeting as presented was made 

by Mr. Tardoni second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

Professional Practice Review Plan 
 

The motion to approve the plan as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. 

Motion carried. Dr. Sowada thanked everyone for their work. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

FY22 Audit Report 

 

Ms. Richardson introduced Mr. Darryn McGarvey, Clifton Larson Allen (CLA), joining via 

telephone. She said the audit is always done very well. Ms. Richardson thanked Chief Financial 

Officer Ms. Tami Love and her team for the excellent job they have done. Mr. McGarvey reviewed 

the audit report highlights and thanked Ms. Richardson for bringing the team onsite. He said he 

met with the Finance and Audit Committee to review the audit in detail the previous week. 

Following his review of the report and comments, Ms. Richardson thanked Mr. McGarvey and 

CLA for being great partners with us. The motion to approve the FY22 audit as presented was 

made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

Employee Policies – Conflict of Interest 

 

Ms. Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel, reported we have updated the current policy to make it 

more up-to-date and match the Board of Trustees Conflict of Interest Policy. The motion to 

approve the Conflict of Interest Policy as presented was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Kelsey. 

Motion carried. 

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Charter 

 

Following a review of updates by Mr. Jones, the motion to approve the charter as presented was 

made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

4/110



 

 

Minutes of the November 2, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson provided a strategic plan update including person-centered care initiatives, Culture 

of Safety Survey progress, Employee Engagement Survey status, work to improve days of cash on 

hand, and recognized Dr. Melinda Poyer, Chief Medical Officer, for being honored as one of the 

nation’s top 100 doctors. Ms. Richardson reported we are working with CLA to perform a charge 

capture review in Cerner. Grant applications to the State Loan and Investment Board (SLIB) are 

scheduled for review in early November. Ms. Richardson thanked Mr. Smith and the Board of 

County Commissioners and the Foundation Board for their offers of matching funds to support the 

applications. Ms. Richardson was invited by CLA to participate in a panel discussion. The MHSC 

Halloween Walk with the Scarecrows event was successful with over 1,300 visitors. Ms. 

Richardson thanked everyone who helped with the event. Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation 

Executive Director, will present to the Rock Springs Chamber of Commerce November 10 with a 

goal to educate the community on how not-for-profit hospitals operate and how tax revenue is 

used. The Veteran’s Day drive-thru event will be November 11. We will participate in the 

December 3 Rock Springs Lighted Holiday Parade. The MHSC staff holiday lunch and dinner are 

scheduled December 14. The Community Holiday event is scheduled December 16. The Red Tie 

Gala is scheduled February 4, 2023. Dr. Sowada thanked Ms. Richardson for her report and said 

there is always something community-oriented going on.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

Quality Committee 
 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the meeting packet.  

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the information is the packet. She noted the number for contract labor is coming 

down as is the expense related to contract labor. She thanked everyone working to make that 

happen. Ms. Richardson said based on our patient numbers, we may have to bring some additional 

staff on during the upcoming busy season for approximately three months. She said we are 

committed to continuing to do everything possible to recruit our own staff and not utilize contract 

staff whenever possible.  

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the information is in the meeting packet. 

 

Bad Debt: The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $1,493,400.79 as presented by Mr. 

Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services, was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. 

Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

I.S. Report: Mr. Tardoni noted the Information Services Department report is included in the 

packet. 

 

  

5/110



 

 

Minutes of the November 2, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

Building and Grounds 

 

Mr. Kelsey said the information is in the meeting packet. He said he requested a list of projects for 

the next three to five years.  

 

Foundation 

 

Ms. Marshall provided an update. She said she will begin submitting a written report for the packet. 

Mr. Jones asked everyone to please remind people that all contributions to the Foundation benefit 

the Hospital in important ways. 

 

Compliance Committee 

 

The Committee did not meet. 

 

Governance Committee 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the meeting packet.  

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the meeting packet. 

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee has not met. 

 

BOARD EDUCATION 

 

Supply Chain: Mitigating Risk and Disruption Beyond the Pandemic 

 

Ms. Richardson commended Ms. Angel Bennett, Director of Materials Management, for her 

proactive work in this area. Ms. Love said some of the recommendations in the program are things 

we are doing. We have a Value Analysis Committee and we are vetting vendors. We look at more 

reusable products whenever possible and coordinate with groups to help us with better pricing 

through larger volumes. Mr. Jones said the key takeaway for him is we need to be creative.  

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Crofts said the Medicine Department met and elected Dr. Pritam Pawar as the Chair and Dr. 

Israel Stewart as the Vice-Chair. The Medical Staff Nominating Committee will meet soon and 

the election of officers for next year is scheduled November 15. A meeting is scheduled with Press 

Ganey on November 30. Dr. Crofts reported there are people rounding on patient experience and 

she understands it’s been a great experience. She said Ms. Andazola from Planetree shared with 

her a resource available to physicians regarding improved communication. Dr. Crofts said it is a 

program presented by physicians to physicians.    

 

6/110



 

 

Minutes of the November 2, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Dr. Sowada asked for input on if the Board wants to meet later in the day. She said Ms. Richardson 

has offered to arrange for a meal if that is something that would be helpful due to meeting in the 

evening. The group agreed to stay with what we have until further notice.  

 

Mr. Jones asked the Trustees to let him know if they want to participate in a basket for the Red Tie 

Gala auction. He thanked them for their support and involvement in previous years.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into executive session was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Jones. Motion 

carried.   

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 4:50 p.m., the motion to leave executive session and return to regular session was made by Mr. 

Tardoni; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Approval of Privileges 
 

The motion to approve the list of clinical privileges to the Medical Staff as reviewed in executive 

session was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

 

Credentials Committee Recommendations from October 18, 2022 

1. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 year) 

 Dr. Grzegorz Puchala, Hospitalist 

 Dr. Christopher Ryba, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 

2. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Ken Holt, OB/GYN 

 

3. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Lucy Haberthier-Ryan, Pediatrics 

 Dr. Janene Glyn, Pediatrics 

 

4. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Raoul Joubran, Gastroenterology 

 Dr. Irma Fleming, Tele Burn (U of U) 

 Dr. Kevin Shaw, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

 

5. Reappointment to NPP Staff (2 years) 

 Tamara Walker, Pediatric Nurse Practitioner 

 

The motion to approve the employment contract and authorize the CEO to execute the contract as 

reviewed in executive session was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried. 

7/110



 

 

Minutes of the November 2, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 4:51 p.m.   

      

 

         

  ___________________________________  

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Secretary 

8/110



9/110



10/110



11/110



12/110



13/110



14/110



15/110



16/110



17/110



18/110



19/110



20/110



21/110



22/110



23/110



24/110



25/110



26/110



27/110



28/110



29/110



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 1 

 

Orthopedic Privileges 

Rev: 06/2022 

Delineation of Privileges 

ORTHOPEDIC PRIVILEGES 

 

 Initial appointment    Reappointment    Modification of Privileges 

Applicant 

Check the “Requested” box for each privilege requested. Applicants have the burden of producing information deemed adequate by 

the hospital for a proper evaluation of current competence, current clinical activity, and other qualifications and for resolving any 

doubts related to qualifications for requested privileges. 

To be eligible to request privileges in Orthopedics, a practitioner must meet the following minimum threshold criteria: 

 

LICENSURE / 

PROFESSIONAL 

LIABILITY 

INSURANCE 

MD or DO 

Licensed to practice medicine in the State of Wyoming 

Current Wyoming designated DEA Registration and current Wyoming Controlled Substance Registration 

Professional liability insurance in the amounts of at least: Per Claim: $1,000,000.00 Aggregate: 

$3,000,000.00. 

EDUCATION / 

TRAINING 

Completion of an approved residency in Orthopedic Surgery by the Accreditation Council for Graduate 

Medical Education (ACGME) or American Osteopathic Association (AOA).  

CERTIFICATION Certification by the applicable Orthopedic specialty board for any clinical privileges for which applicant 

has applied, or be eligible for certification by such board.  Once physician is board certified, 

Maintenance of Board Certification is required.  

CLINICAL 

EXPERIENCE 

(INITIAL) 

Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate the performance of at least 100 orthopedic 

procedures during the last 12 months or demonstrate successful completion of a hospital-affiliated 

accredited residency, special clinical fellowship, or research. 

Applicants for initial appointment may be requested to provide documentation of the number and types 

of hospital cases during the past 24 months.  Applicants have the burden of producing information 

deemed adequate by the Hospital for a proper evaluation of current competence, and other qualifications, 

and for resolving any doubts. 

CLINICAL 

EXPERIENCE 

(REAPPOINTMENT) 

To be eligible to renew core privileges in orthopedic surgery, the applicant must meet the following 

Maintenance of Privilege criteria: Current demonstrated competence and an adequate volume of 

experience with acceptable results in the privileges requested for the past 24 months based on results of 

quality assessment/improvement activities and outcomes.  Evidence of current ability to perform 

privileges requested is required of all applicants for renewal of privileges. 

FPPE FPPE criteria will be assigned by the Department Chair during the approval process. 

OTHER 

REQUIREMENTS 
 Note that privileges granted may only be exercised at the site(s) and setting(s) that have the 

appropriate equipment, license, beds, staff, and other support required to provide the services 

defined in this document. Site-specific services may be defined in hospital or department policy. 

 This document is focused on defining qualifications related to competency to exercise clinical 

privileges. The applicant must also adhere to any additional organizational, regulatory, or 

accreditation requirements that the organization is obligated to meet.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

30/110



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 2 

 

Orthopedic Privileges 

Rev: 06/2022 

ORTHOPEDIC SURGERY CORE PRIVILEGES - This is not intended to be an all-encompassing procedures list.  It defines 

the types of activities/procedures/ privileges that the majority of practitioners in this specialty perform at this organization and 

inherent activities/ procedures/privileges requiring similar skill sets and techniques.  

Requested CHECK ALL PRIVILEGES/PROCEDURES YOU ARE REQUESTING Approved 

☐ Admit, evaluate, diagnose, treat and provide consultation to patients of all ages in the inpatient 

or outpatient setting.  Privileges include the ability to correct or treat various conditions, 

illnesses and injuries of the extremities and associated structures by medical, surgical, and 

physical means including but not limited to congenital deformities, trauma, infections, tumors, 

metabolic disturbances of the musculoskeletal system, deformities, injuries, and degenerative 

diseases of the hands, feet, knee, hip, shoulder, and elbow including primary and secondary 

muscular problems and the effects of central or peripheral nervous system lesions of the 

musculoskeletal system, as well as closed treatment of the spine. Physicians may provide care 

to patients in the intensive care setting in conformance with unit policies.  Assess, stabilize, and 

determine the disposition of patients with emergent conditions consistent with medical staff 

policy regarding emergency and consultative call services.  

☐ 

☐ Consultation includes: conduct history and assessment for the purpose of making 

recommendations related to care and treatment 
☐ 

☐ Amputation surgery including immediate prosthetic fitting in the operating room ☐ 

☐ Arthrocentesis, diagnostic ☐ 

☐ Arthrodesis, osteotomy and ligament reconstruction of the major peripheral joints, excluding 

total replacement of joint 
☐ 

☐ Arthrography ☐ 

☐ Arthroplasty of large and small joints, wrist, or hand, including implants ☐ 

☐ Arthroscopic surgery ☐ 

☐ Biopsy and excision of tumors involving bone and adjacent soft tissues ☐ 

☐ Bone grafts and allografts ☐ 

☐ Bone graft pertaining to the hand ☐ 

☐ Carpal tunnel decompression ☐ 

☐ C-Arm assisted surgery – plain film ☐ 

☐ Closed reduction of fractures and dislocations of the skeleton ☐ 

☐ Debridement of soft tissue ☐ 

☐ Delayed and non-unions or long bone fractures with or without internal fixation and bone 

grafting 
☐ 

☐ Excision of soft tissue/bony masses ☐ 

☐ Fasciotomy and fasciectomy ☐ 

☐ Fracture fixation ☐ 

☐ Growth disturbances such as injuries involving growth plates with a high percentage of 

growth arrest, growth inequality, epiphysiodesis, stapling, bone shortening or lengthening 

procedures 

☐ 

☐ Hand and foot surgery including flexor, extensor tendon repair, ligament reconstruction and 

tendon transfer  
☐ 

☐ Ilizorov external fixation device ☐ 

☐ Laceration repair ☐ 

☐ Ligament reconstruction ☐ 

☐ Local anesthesia to include hematoma block, Bier block, axillary block  ☐ 

☐ Local skin flaps ☐ 

☐ Major arthroplasty, including total replacement of knee joint, hip joint, shoulder ☐ 

31/110



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 3 

 

Orthopedic Privileges 

Rev: 06/2022 

☐ Management of infections and inflammations of bones, joints, and tendon sheaths ☐ 

☐ Muscle and tendon repair, excluding hand ☐ 

☐ Neurorrhaphy ☐ 

☐ Open and closed reduction of fractures ☐ 

☐ Open reduction and internal/external fixation of fractures and dislocations of the skeleton ☐ 

☐ Performance of history and physical exam ☐ 

☐ Provide technical assistance in the operating room as a surgical assistant ☐ 

☐ Reconstructive joint and ligamentous reconstructive joint surgery to upper and lower 

extremities including total joints, joint arthroscopy, reconstruction, and endoscopy 
☐ 

☐ Removal of soft tissue mass, ganglion palm or wrist, flexor sheath, etc. ☐ 

☐ Skin and bone grafts ☐ 

☐ Skin lacerations ☐ 

☐ Skin Tumors ☐ 

☐ Split thickness grafts ☐ 

☐ Tendon reconstruction (free graft, staged) ☐ 

☐ Tendon release, repair and fixation ☐ 

☐ Tendon transfers ☐ 

☐ Treatment of infections ☐ 

☐ Total arthroplasty requiring large bone graft, either autograft or allograft ☐ 

☐ Total joint replacement revision ☐ 

☐ Total joint surgery ☐ 

☐ Treatment of trauma ☐ 

☐ Wolff grafts ☐ 

☐ Zyplasty ☐ 

 

SPECIAL NON-CORE PRIVILEGES  

If desired, noncore privileges are requested individually in addition to requesting the core. Each individual requesting 

noncore privileges must meet the specific threshold criteria governing the exercise of the privilege requested including 

training, required previous experience, and maintenance of clinical competence. To be eligible to apply for the special 

non-core privileges listed below, the applicant must demonstrate successful completion of an approved, recognized course 

when such exists, or acceptable supervised training in residency, fellowship or other acceptable experience, and provide 

documentation of competence in performing the requested procedure consistent with criteria set forth in medical staff 

policies governing the exercise of specific privileges. 

Requested CHECK ALL PRIVILEGES/PROCEDURES YOU ARE REQUESTING Approved 

☐ Brace treatment for congenital hip ☐ 

☐ Complex pelvic and acetabular fractures ☐ 

☐ Definitive oncologic resection requiring adjuvant therapy for primary musculoskeletal 

tumors  
☐ 

☐ Initial casting for club feet ☐ 

☐ Major cancer procedures involving major proximal amputation (i.e., forequarter, 

hindquarter) or extensive segmental tumor resections 
☐ 

☐ Microscope: Use of the microscope for small vessel and nerve anastomosis and spinal 

surgery 
☐ 

☐ Nerve graft ☐ 

☐ Open reduction for congenital hip dislocation, femoral or acetabular reconstructions for congenital hip 

dislocation, slipped femoral capital epiphysis or leg Perthes Disease 
☐ 

32/110



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 4 

 

Orthopedic Privileges 

Rev: 06/2022 

☐ Operative treatment of club feet  ☐ 

☐ Pedicle grafts ☐ 

☐ Reconstruction of non-spinal congenital musculoskeletal anomalies ☐ 

☐ Rotational flaps ☐ 

☐ Unstable spine fractures ☐ 

☐ Use of Laser  
Initial Privileges: Successful completion of an approved residency in a specialty or sub-specialty that 

included training in laser principles or completion of an approved 8-10 hour minimum continuing 

medical education (CME) course that included training in laser principles. In addition, an applicant for 

privileges should spend time after the basic training course in a clinical setting with an experienced 

operator who has been granted laser privileges acting as a preceptor. Practitioner agrees to limit 

practice to only the specific laser types for which he/she has provided documentation of training and 

experience. AND 

Required Current Experience: Demonstrated current competence and evidence of the performance 

of at least 5 procedures in the past 12 months or completion of training in the past 12 months. 

Renewal of privilege: Demonstrated current competence and evidence of the performance of at least 

5 procedures in the past 24 months based on results of ongoing professional practice evaluation and 

outcomes. 

☐ 

☐ Orthotripsy  
Initial Privileges: Successful completion of an ACGME OR AOA accredited residency training 

program in orthopedic surgery or CPME accredited training program in podiatric surgery.  Applicants 

must have also completed an orthotripsy course that included shock wave machine training and 

observed cases.   

AND 

Required Current Experience: Applicants must be able to demonstrate that they have performed at 

least 5 orthotripsy procedures in the past 12 months.   

Renewal of Privilege: Applicant must be able to show maintenance of competence with evidence of 

the performance of at least 5 orthotripsy procedures in the past 24 months. 

☐ 

 Administration of Sedation and Analgesia 
Must be requested separately. Contact Medical Staff Services for privilege form. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

33/110



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 5 

 

Orthopedic Privileges 

Rev: 06/2022 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF APPLICANT 

I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, current experience, and demonstrated 

performance I am qualified to perform and that I wish to exercise at Hospital, and I understand that: 

a. In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Hospital and Medical Staff policies and rules 

applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation. 

b. Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such situation 

my actions are governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or related documents. 

 

Applicant’s Printed Name:      

 

Applicant’s Signature:       Date:      

 

DEPARTMENT CHAIR REVIEW 

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation and make the following 

recommendations: 

☐ Recommend all privileges as requested 

 

☐ Recommend privileges with conditions/modifications (describe): 

 

 

 

☐ Do not recommend the following requested privileges (rationale for recommendation): 

 

 

 

☐ I assign ________________________________________ to complete the initial FPPE evaluations on this 

Practitioner. 

 

Department Chair’s Printed Name      

 

 

Department Chair’s Signature:       Date:      

 

 

FOR MEDICAL STAFF OFFICE USE ONLY 

Credentials Committee approval Date:    

Medical Executive Committee approval Date:    

Board of Trustees approval Date:    

 

Privileges Effective From: ____________________ To: ____________________ 

 

Date Form Approved by Specialty: 6/23/2022      

Date Form Approved by Department Chair:11/4/2022        

Date Approved by Credentials Committee: 11/8/2022     

Date Approved by MEC: 11/29/2022       

Date Approved by Board of Trustees:        

34/110



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 1 

 

Emergency Medicine Physician Privileges 

Rev: 06/2022 

Delineation of Privileges 

EMERGENCY MEDICINE PRIVILEGES 

 

 Initial appointment    Reappointment    Modification of Privileges 

Applicant 

Check the “Requested” box for each privilege requested. Applicants have the burden of producing information deemed adequate by 

the hospital for a proper evaluation of current competence, current clinical activity, and other qualifications and for resolving any 

doubts related to qualifications for requested privileges. 

To be eligible to request privileges in Emergency Medicine, a practitioner must meet the following minimum threshold criteria: 

 

LICENSURE / 

PROFESSIONAL 

LIABILITY 

INSURANCE 

MD or DO 

Licensed to practice medicine in the State of Wyoming 

Current Wyoming designated DEA Registration and current Wyoming Controlled Substance Registration 

Professional liability insurance in the amounts of at least: Per Claim: $1,000,000.00 Aggregate: 

$3,000,000.00 

EDUCATION / 

TRAINING 

Completion of an approved residency in Emergency Medicine by the Accreditation Council for Graduate 

Medical Education (ACGME) or American Osteopathic Association (AOA).  

CERTIFICATION Certification by the applicable Emergency Medicine board for any clinical privileges for which applicant 

has applied, or be eligible for certification by such board.  Once physician is board certified, 

Maintenance of Board Certification is required. 

CLINICAL 

EXPERIENCE 

(INITIAL) 

Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate active practice in an ED, reflective of the 

scope of privileges requested, in the past 12 months with a census equal to or exceeding 10,000 patient 

visits annually or demonstrate successful completion of an ACGME- or AOA-accredited residency, 

clinical fellowship, or research in a clinical setting within the past 12 months. 
Applicants for initial appointment may be requested to provide documentation of the number and types 

of hospital cases during the past 24 months.  Applicants have the burden of producing information 

deemed adequate by the Hospital for a proper evaluation of current competence, and other qualifications 

and for resolving any doubts. 

CLINICAL 

EXPERIENCE 

(REAPPOINTMENT) 

To be eligible to renew core privileges in emergency medicine, the applicant must meet the following 

maintenance of privilege criteria: Current demonstrated competence and an adequate volume of 

experience with acceptable results, reflective of the scope of privileges requested, for the past 24 months 

based on results of ongoing professional practice evaluation and outcomes. Evidence of current ability to 

perform privileges requested is required of all applicants for renewal of privileges. 

FPPE FPPE criteria will be assigned by the Department Chair during the approval process. 

OTHER 

REQUIREMENTS 
 Note that privileges granted may only be exercised at the site(s) and setting(s) that have the 

appropriate equipment, license, beds, staff, and other support required to provide the services 

defined in this document. Site-specific services may be defined in hospital or department policy. 

 This document is focused on defining qualifications related to competency to exercise clinical 

privileges. The applicant must also adhere to any additional organizational, regulatory, or 

accreditation requirements that the organization is obligated to meet.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35/110



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 2 

 

Emergency Medicine Physician Privileges 

Rev: 06/2022 

 

EMERGENCY MEDICINE CORE PRIVILEGES - This is not intended to be an all-encompassing procedures list.  It defines 

the types of activities/procedures/ privileges that the majority of practitioners in this specialty perform at this organization and 

inherent activities/ procedures/privileges requiring similar skill sets and techniques 

Requested CHECK ALL PRIVILEGES/PROCEDURES YOU ARE REQUESTING Approved 

☐ Assess, evaluate, diagnose, and initially treat patients of all ages who present in the 

ED with any symptom, illness, injury, or condition and provide services necessary to 

ameliorate minor illnesses or injuries and stabilize patients with major illnesses or 

injuries and to assess all patients to determine if additional care is necessary

☐ 

☐ Abscess incision and drainage, including Bartholin’s cyst ☐ 

☐ Airway management and intubation ☐ 

☐ Administration of sedation and analgesia per hospital policy ☐ 

☐ Administration of thrombolytic therapy for myocardial infarction, stroke ☐ 

☐ Anoscopy ☐ 

☐ Arterial puncture and cannulation ☐ 

☐ Arthrocentesis ☐ 

☐ Anesthesia: intravenous (upper extremity, local, and regional) ☐ 

☐ Bladder decompression and catheterization techniques ☐ 

☐ Blood component transfusion therapy ☐ 

☐ Burn management, including escharotomy ☐ 

☐ Cannulation, artery and vein ☐ 

☐ Cardiac pacing to include but not limited to external, transthoracic, transvenous ☐ 

☐ Cardiac massage, open or closed ☐ 

☐ Cardioversion (synchronized counter-shock) ☐ 

☐ Central venous access (femoral, jugular, peripheral, internal, and subclavian) ☐ 

☐ Chemical restraint of agitated patient ☐ 

☐ Cricothyrotomy ☐ 

☐ Defibrillation ☐ 

☐ Dislocation/fracture reduction/immobilization techniques, including splint and cast 

applications 

☐ 

☐ Electrocardiography interpretation ☐ 

☐ Emergency Vaginal Delivery ☐ 

☐ Endotracheal intubation techniques ☐ 

☐ External transcutaneous pacemaker ☐ 

☐ Focused Abdominal Sonography for Trauma (F.A.S.T) ☐ 

☐ GI decontamination (emesis, lavage, charcoal) ☐ 

☐ Hernia reduction ☐ 

☐ Irrigation and management of caustic exposures ☐ 

☐ Insertion of emergency transvenous pacemaker ☐ 

☐ Intraosseous infusion ☐ 

☐ Laryngoscopy, direct, indirect ☐ 

☐ Lumbar puncture ☐ 

☐ Management of epistaxis ☐ 

☐ Nail trephine techniques ☐ 

36/110



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 3 

 

Emergency Medicine Physician Privileges 

Rev: 06/2022 

☐ Nasal cautery/packing ☐ 

☐ Nasogastric/orogastric intubation ☐ 

☐ Ocular tonometry ☐ 

☐ Oxygen therapy ☐ 

☐ Paracentesis ☐ 

☐ Pericardiocentesis ☐ 

☐ Perform history and physical exam ☐ 

☐ Point of Care Ultrasound ☐ 

☐ Preliminary interpretation of imaging studies ☐ 

☐ Removal of foreign bodies, airway including nose, eye, ear, soft 

instrumentation/irrigation, skin or subcutaneous tissue 

☐ 

☐ Removal of IUD ☐ 

☐ Repair of lacerations ☐ 

☐ Resuscitation ☐ 

☐ Slit lamp used for ocular exam, removal of corneal foreign body ☐ 

☐ Spine immobilization ☐ 

☐ Thoracentesis ☐ 

☐ Thoracostomy tube insertion ☐ 

☐ Thoracotomy, open for patient in extremis ☐ 

☐ Variceal/nonvariceal hemostasis ☐ 

☐ Wound debridement and repair ☐ 

☐ Intraosseous infusion ☐ 

☐ Laryngoscopy, direct, indirect ☐ 

☐ Lumbar puncture ☐ 

☐ Management of epistaxis ☐ 

☐ Nail trephine techniques ☐ 

☐ Nasal cautery/packing ☐ 

☐ Nasogastric/orogastric intubation ☐ 

☐ Ocular tonometry ☐ 

☐ Oxygen therapy ☐ 

☐ Paracentesis ☐ 

 

 Administration of Sedation and Analgesia 
Must be requested separately. Contact Medical Staff Services for privilege form. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37/110



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 4 

 

Emergency Medicine Physician Privileges 

Rev: 06/2022 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF APPLICANT 

I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, current experience, and demonstrated 

performance I am qualified to perform and that I wish to exercise at Hospital, and I understand that: 

a. In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Hospital and Medical Staff policies and rules 

applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation. 

b. Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such situation 

my actions are governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or related documents. 
 

Applicant’s Printed Name:      

 

Applicant’s Signature:       Date:      

 

 

DEPARTMENT CHAIR REVIEW 

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation and make the following recommendations: 

 

☐ Recommend all privileges as requested 

 

☐ Recommend privileges with conditions/modifications (describe): 

 

 

 

☐ Do not recommend the following requested privileges (rationale for recommendation): 

 

 

 

☐ I assign ________________________________________ to complete the initial FPPE evaluations on this Practitioner. 

 

 

Department Chair’s Printed Name      

 

 

Department Chair’s Signature:       Date:      

 

 

FOR MEDICAL STAFF OFFICE USE ONLY 

Credentials Committee approval Date:    

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date:    

Board of Trustees approval Date:    

 

Privileges Effective From: ____________________ To: ____________________ 
 

Date Form Approved by Specialty:  06/08/2022     

Date Form Approved by Department Chair: 11/4/2022       

Date Approved by Credentials Committee: 11/8/2022     

Date Approved by MEC:   11/29/2022     

Date Approved by Board of Trustees:       

38/110



To: Board of Trustees 

From: Barbara J. Sowada, substituting for Kandi Pendleton, Chair 

Re: Human Resources Committee Meeting 

Date: November 28, 2022 

 

The Human Resources Committee met November 28th from 3:00 to 4:00 pm by Zoom.  

 

Major discussion items were as follows: 

 

 Turnover rate is stable and a little better than national average. High turnover in EVS is 

not surprising. Recruitment of EVS staff has become challenging.  

 HR is successful and renegotiating salaries for travelers. Hourly wages and number of 

travelers are both declining as per plan.  

 Employee Policy: Workplace Violence and Workplace Violence Plan were reviewed. Both 

have been approved by senior management. Committee recommended that both be 

submitted to Board for first reading at the Board’s December meeting.  

 Executive highlights of the Staff Engagement Survey were reviewed.  

 

For more detail, see the reports and minutes of this meeting which are included in the 

December Board packet. 

 

Next HR meeting will be December 19th. 

 

 

39/110



F&A COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORT TO THE BOARD   

November 2022 meeting 

Chair – Ed Tardoni 

 The Finance and Audit Committee met in Zoom format this month.  Voting member Jan Layne was 

excused all other members present. 

F&A DATA FOR THE MONTH 

This month there was an over two-million-dollar disbursement to Medicaid.  That disbursement was per 

contract for what is called a Qualified Rate Adjustment program.  We are a county hospital and per 

contract we make an Inter Governmental Transfer of funds based on our receipts from Medicaid.  That 

payment is made to the State of Wyoming Medicaid program.  Funds from qualifying hospitals in the 

State are mingled with payments from the Federal Government to the State of Wyoming.  

Disbursements are then made to hospitals such as MHSC.  Not all hospitals receive the same level of 

disbursement.  MHSC will be receiving over four million dollars.  The program is meant to correct an 

inequality that occurs related to hospital size and nature that is caused by Medicare rules.  The transfer 

of funds back and forth is designed to comply with accounting rules for each level involved; County, 

State and Federal.   

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES  

There are no capital expenditures for consideration this month.  98% of the FYI capital budget remains 

uncommitted. 

OTHER BUSINESS 

(Cener EMR Implementation.)  The Financial Packet contains the IS Department report that details the 

hardware and software progress with Cerner.  The related progress in days AR and Discharged Not Billed 

amounts are contained in Ron Cheese’s report.  Progress is being made but goals have yet to be met. 

 

December Meeting 

The F&A Committee will not meet in the month of December. 

 

40/110



41/110



42/110



43/110



44/110



45/110



46/110



47/110



48/110



49/110



50/110



51/110



52/110



53/110



54/110



55/110



56/110



57/110



58/110



59/110



60/110



61/110



62/110



63/110



64/110



65/110



66/110



67/110



68/110



69/110



70/110



71/110



72/110



73/110



74/110



75/110



76/110



77/110



78/110



79/110



80/110



81/110



82/110



83/110



84/110



85/110



86/110



87/110



88/110



89/110



90/110



91/110



92/110



93/110



94/110



95/110



96/110



97/110



98/110



99/110



100/110



101/110



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…November Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 
Date:  November 28, 2022 
 
Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room…Specs should be ready for the bidding docs in early December. 
Cost estimate should be available by  mid-December. 
 
Dr. Sulentich Office…Work is scheduled to commence on December 12th. 
 
Building Automation System…Work is progressing. Still working on controls. Balancing needs to 
be done towards the end of the project. 
 
Bulk Oxygen…Contractor is working on the connection to the MOB. Testing should be 
completed by Thanksgiving. Work will continue into December. As noted earlier, asphalt paving 
will be done next spring. 
 
MOB Space Renovation…some renovations need to be done to make room for the Tele-Psych 
personnel. One provider will be on site and additional space will be set aside for tele visits. 
Waiting on materials to commence work. Will use a local contractor for the work. 
 
Lightning Arrest System...tabled until early 2023 at which time the contractor will provide the 
Hospital with a cost proposal. 
 
OB Shower Renovation…tabled until sometime in 2023. 
 
SLIB Projects…still waiting for the SLIB Board to review the proposals and make funding 
decisions…probably sometime in January. 
 
Building and Grounds Annual Plan…staff presented an early draft of a 2-3 year plan which 
includes a rating system to help with prioritization. Once the plan is refined, the Committee will 
review and then ultimately the plan will be shared with the Board of Trustees. 
 
For more detailed information, please see the Committee minutes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

102/110



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

November 15, 2022 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on November 15, 2022, 

at 3:00 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

   Mr. Ed Tardoni – Trustee 

   Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. James Horan, Director of Facilities 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

    

 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the agenda.  Ms. Richardson made a motion to approve 

the agenda.  Mr. Tardoni seconded; motion passed. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the October 24, 2022 meeting. Mr. 

Tardoni made a motion to approve the minutes.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed.  

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Johnston reviewed the metrics and said the total in progress looks high, but the end of month 

looks accurate.  Mr. Horan said they do have one less FTE which they are trying not to fill the 

position at this time. 

 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room  

 

Ms. Love said there were some emails circulating asking for the final edit of the functional program 

narrative needed for the OHLS submission.  It is still expected to have detailed specs for bidding 

documents the first week of December with advertised bid going out in late December to early 

January.  We should have a cost estimate by mid-December for approval at the December meeting.   

 

 Dr. Sulentich Office  

 

Mr. Johnston said we are still on schedule to start mid- December. 

 

Building Automation System 

 

Mr. Johnston said Vaughn’s and Harris have been here every day working and are on schedule to 

have 85% of the controls programmed by Thanksgiving break.  They will then work on flow 

control for the radiant heat which is primary.  Once complete, all air exchanges will need to be 

fixed as there has been complaints about the noise and the final balancing will be done.  Mr. Kelsey 

asked if the project will be completed by the end of the month.  Mr. Horan said yes except for the 

radiant heating.  

103/110



 

 

Minutes of the November 15, 2022 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

 

Bulk Oxygen  

 

Mr. Johnston said the parts for the temporary connection to the MOB have been received and they 

are working on the connection. They will then need to chlorinate and test by the end of next week.  

Wylie Construction will be able to resume the project after Thanksgiving.  

 

 

MOB Space Renovation  

 

Mr. Horan said we have a proposal from a local contractor to do some lower cost, minor 

renovations so we can get the staff moved quickly.  New door frames have been quoted and ordered 

and the work will start once they arrive.  The new tele psych contract is still being reviewed before 

it goes to the Board for approval.  Mr. Kelsey asked about the number of providers we will be 

moving into the vacated space. We will have one provider onsite and the other space will be used 

for tele visits with the new vendor.  There will be support staff for both the onsite provider and the 

tele providers. 

 

 

Tabled Projects  

 

Lightning Arrest System 

 

Mr. Horan said this project has been tabled until the new year with the potential of starting 

the project in the spring, prior to lightning season.  The contractor is waiting until the new 

year to submit a proposal. 

 

OB Shower Renovation  

 

Mr. Kelsey confirmed this project is still tabled for after the new year. 

 

No other table projects were discussed. 

 

 

Old Business - Other 

 

SLIB Projects 

 

Ms. Richardson said there has been some conflicting information on how to update or change the 

current grant requests.  She said Tiffany Marshall has been working directly with SLIB staff.  

The agenda for the November 16th meeting lists $42 million in projects recommended for 

approval.  We are not on that list but expect the next meeting to be in January.  

 

Building and Grounds Annual Plan 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked about the progress of updating the annual plan to include 2 – 3 years of 

prioritized projects.  Ms. Richardson said we had met internally and have been working on this.  

Mr. Kelsey said he really likes the format of the new plan with the rating system for priority.  

104/110



 

 

Minutes of the November 15, 2022 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

Mr. Tardoni said once it is complete, he would like to share with the whole board.  The team will 

continue to work on this expanded plan to add estimated costs and funding sources.  There was 

discussion about the County maintenance fund and the possibility of building up these funds for 

bigger projects.  Ms. Richardson does plan to meet with each of the new Commissioners once 

they are in office for a hospital orientation.  

  

 

New Business 

 

None 

 

Other 

 

Mr. Tardoni said he had attended the Chamber of Commerce luncheon to hear Ms. Marshall’s 

presentation regarding “not for profit hospitals”.  He said the presentation was excellent and asked 

that it be shared with all the Board members.  Ms. Richardson said this idea came out of the 

Foundation Board’s strategic planning session.   

 

The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, December 20, 2022.   
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

105/110



 

Board Compliance Committee Meeting 

   Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

November 28th, 2022 

 
  

Present via Zoom: Irene Richardson, CEO, Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel, Taylor Jones, Trustee, 
Barbara Sowada, MHSC Board President*, April Prado, Foundation & Compliance. 
Absent: Kandi Pendleton, Trustee-Chair. 
 *It should be noted that Barbara Sowada was a sub for Kandi Pendleton. 

Minutes 
Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 9:10 am by Taylor Jones. 
Agenda 
The November agenda was approved as written, Barbara made the motion and Irene seconded it. 
Motion carried. 
Meeting Minutes 
The meeting minutes from the September 26, 2022 were presented. Irene made the motion to approve 
the minutes as written and Taylor seconded. Motion carried.   

 

Old Business 
1. Compliance Self Audit. This report was attached for review and Suzan reported that this is a 

“self-check” that she does that helps establish a to-do list for compliance. She reported that 
we are doing most of the items and are doing them really well. There are some items in the 
audit that do not apply to us and they were left blank. Suzan stated that this audit is done in 
hospitals big and small and overall, we are doing really well and she was happy with the 
results. Taylor asked what areas would need improvement and requested a timeline of 
when the improvements would be done. Suzan stated that this was a self-audit and more of 
a working document to see where we can improve but she will type something up for this 
committee.  

2. Cybersecurity Audit update. Suzan reported that herself, April and Terry Thompson (IS 
Director) had worked together to get this assessment going she then turned the time over 
to April to report. The “Cyber Resilience Essentials Performance Summary” was presented to 
the committee in their packet. A draft copy of the assessment report was also given to the 
members before this meeting. April reported that this assessment had been done with 
C.I.S.A. which is a division of Homeland Security. She explained that this assessment 
evaluated our readiness and ability for cybersecurity. This CRR assessment evaluated 10 goal 
areas set forth by C.I.S.A. and our overall score was 74%. April further explained that each 
area was broken down on the presented summary and some areas of improvement had 
been found. These areas will be worked on by Terry and his department and a follow up 
audit will be done again in 6 to 12 months. Taylor requested that a timeline with goals be 
provided in the “Findings” section of the audit and that they be prioritized. Taylor also 
stated that 6 to 12 months is a pretty wide-open date and would like to have a completion 
date for the return audit. April stated that she would work with Terry to get this information 
and add it to the report. She is hoping to meet with him by next week to get this 
information and will get it back to this committee as soon as possible.  

3. Updated Workplan. The CY 2021-2022 Work Plan was presented and Suzan reported that all 
items are now complete or almost complete (the Cybersecurity audit was presented at this 

 

106/110



 

meeting). She continued that we will have to have a new plan for next year and that it is 
something we need to be thinking about. 
 

New Business 
1. Potential new audit topic-coding and documentation. Suzan just stated that this is 

something that Irene, April and herself are looking into. 
 

Standing Items-Reports 
The “Standing Items” report was presented and Suzan reported specifically on the following items;  

1. Suzan reported that there is currently no internal or external investigation  
2. Audits-Cybersecurity was presented at this meeting.   
3. Hot Line calls- Suzan reported that there were no new reports.  
4. Exclusions/Sanctions Report. Suzan included a report that we get monthly with all our 

physicians on it. She stated that this report lets us know if any provider is excluded from 
providing care to Medicare patients for whatever reason. We use this to make sure our 
providers have no exclusions.  

5. HIPAA Monitoring/Fair Warning Report- Suzan reported that she had worked with HR to get 
the outstanding ones closed and that all but one had been closed. The open one involved a 
student that we could not reach and had contacted the institution itself to counsel the 
student. Irene reported that she had a couple that she was involved in counseling and it 
seemed that the employees were not aware that there was a specific chain of command for 
viewing your own record. Irene asked Suzan if we needed more education and Suzan replied 
that we do. Taylor asked for clarification on the outstanding student one and what would be 
our role now. Suzan answered that the educational institute would be responsible and 
agreed to counsel the student so we would be closing it. Barbara asked about “household 
snooping” and what that meant. April answered that it would be looking at records of 
people that live at your same address. There was much discussion about the proper way to 
access your own record or your family members record and the need for more education on 
this. Suzan is working on training and will continue to work on it. Suzan then clarified that 
our reporting systems are as follows; Synergy-used for occurrences hospital wide and for 
self-reporting, P2Sentinel- monitors our Cerner program and FairWarning-monitors our 
“legacy” systems. Taylor asked about trends and if it would be unreasonable to have zero 
HIPAA incidents. April reported that she is seeing less in the P2Sentinel system and that we 
are still trying to get better reports from them. She also stated that she likes to see more 
Synergy reporting because that means that staff feels comfortable reporting and is doing it. 
April stated that she could pull a year-end report of HIPAA trends for the committee’s 
review. Suzan agreed with April and said that she has been pushing Synergy reporting to 
Leadership. Suzan also said that they are looking for HIPAA training issues and will continue 
to work on it.  

 

Additional Discussion  
Suzan asked for any questions and asked the committee if there is anything they would like to see at 
these meetings or anything that they don’t need to see that is being included? Barbara asked Suzan if 
there was anything that she would like to see with this committee. Suzan stated that we are in a good 
place. We have what this Board needs to report to the hospital Board and she feels that anyone on this 
Board could have an intelligent conversation with anyone about what compliance is doing. It was 
discussed that the next meeting is scheduled for December 26th and some people may still be out of 
town for the holiday. Suzan suggested to meet the 19th or 27th After further discussion, the meeting will 

107/110



 

be scheduled for the 27th-if needed. April will get the timeline and year-end HIPAA report completed for 
committee review.  
 

Next Meeting    

The next meeting will be on December 27th at 9:00am     

 

Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 9:40am 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
_________________________________________________ 
April Prado, Recording Secretary 

 

108/110



 

Assessment Report for Operational Resilience & Cybersecurity Practices 
 

Purpose: 
Using a Cyber Resilience Review (CRR), evaluate the maturity of MHSC’s existing operational resilience, 
and evaluate our ability to manage cyber risk during normal operations and in times of stress and crisis.  
This will also provide a gap analysis for improvement based on recognized best practices.  
 
Introduction: 
This assessment was provided by C.I.S.A. (Cybersecurity & Infrastructure Security Agency) which is an 

agency of the United States Department of Homeland Security. It is responsible for strengthening 

cybersecurity and infrastructure protection across all levels and improving cybersecurity protections 

against private and nation-state hackers. The CRR or Cyber Resilience Review is a non-technical 

assessment used to evaluate an organization’s operational resilience and cybersecurity practices. This 

review was facilitated, on-site, by a DHS (Department of Homeland Security) cybersecurity professional 

and Terry Thompson, MHSC Director of Information Services. 

  

Method and Sample: 
Information for this assessment was collected using CISA’s, CRR assessment (www.cisa.gov). This 

assessment evaluates ten guidelines that measure an organizations operational resilience and its ability 

to manage operational risks to critical services and their associated assets. Each guideline has questions 

that can be answered as, “Yes” meaning it is being performed, “Incomplete” meaning some or in 

progress, or “No” meaning nothing is in place. 139 questions were asked to Terry Thompson by the 

facilitator and the answer were recorded for our records. The facilitator was able to clarify any 

questions/answers at the time of the assessment and a full report was provided at a later date.  

 

Objective: 
1. After answering the assessment questions, determine our performance percentage for the ten      

guidelines set forth in the CRR;  
a. Asset Management- assess the processes used to identify, document, and manage the 

organization’s assets. 
b. Controls Management- assess the processes used to define, analyze, assess, and manage an 

organization’s controls. 
c. Configuration and Change Management-asses the processes used to ensure the integrity of 

an organization’s assets. 
d. Vulnerability Management-assess the processes used to identify, analyze, and manage 

vulnerabilities within the organization’s operating environment. 
e. Incident Management-assess the processes used to identify and analyze events, declare 

incidents, determine a response and improve an organization’s incident management 
capability. 

f. Service Continuity Management-asses the processes used to ensure the continuity of an 
organization’s essential services. 

g. Risk Management asses the process used to identify, analyze, and manage risks to an 
organization’s critical services. 

109/110



 

h. External Dependencies Management-asses the processes used to establish an appropriate 
level of controls to manage the risks that are related to the critical service’s dependence on 
the actions of external entities. 

i. Training and Awareness-asses the processes used to develop skills and promote awareness 
for people with roles that support the critical service. 

j. Situational Awareness-asses the processes used to discover and analyze information 
related to the immediate operational stability of the organization’s critical services and to 
coordinate such information across the enterprise. 

2.  Use the gap-analysis for improvement based on best practices.  

Results: 
The overall performance summary score was determined by the amount of “Yes” answers received on 

the assessment. Of the 139 “practices performed” questions asked, MHSC answered 103 of the 

performances as “Yes”, or being fully performed. This gave MHSC an overall performance score of 74% 

on the CRR assessment. 32 of the 139, or 32% of the questions received “Incomplete” as an answer and 

4 of the 139 or .02% received “No” as an answer. Each of the ten areas and their scores are broken 

down below; 

1. Asset Management-5 questions total. Overall score of 60%. 3/5=YES, 2/5=INCOMPLETE.  
2. Controls Management- 22 questions total. 77% overall. 17/22=YES, 5/22=INCOMPLETE. 
3. Configuration and Change Management-19 questions total. Overall 42%. 8/19=YES, 

8/19=INCOMPLETE, 3/19=NO. 
4. Vulnerability Management-24 questions total. 96% overall. 23/24=YES 1/24=INCOMPLETE. 
5. Incident Management-12 questions total. 67% overall. 8/12=YES, 3/12=INCOMPLETE, 

1/12=NO. 
6. Service Continuity Management-12 questions total. 11/12=YES, 1/12=INCOMPLETE. 
7. Risk Management-21 questions total. 95% overall. 20/21=YES, 1/21+INCOMPLETE. 
8. External Dependencies Management-2 questions total. 0% overall. 2/2=INCOMPLETE. 
9. Training and Awareness-7 questions total. 14% overall. 1/7=YES. 6/7= INCOMPLETE. 
10. Situational Awareness-8 questions total, 63% overall. 5/8=YES, 3/8=INCOMPLETE. 

Findings: 
Based on the results of this assessment, improvement is needed in a few areas. Information Services is 

currently working to get these areas taken care of. DHS will return in 6 months to one year to reassess 

and evaluate our areas of improvement.  
 

110/110


	Agenda - December 7 2022 Mtg
	Our Mission and Vision
	Minutes
	Community Communication
	Workplace Violence Prevention Policy
	Workplace Violence Prevention Program
	Orthopedic Surgery
	Emergency Medicine
	Human Resources Committee
	Finance &amp; Audit Committee
	I.S. Report
	Finance &amp; Audit Committee Meeting Information
	Building and Grounds...Chair&apos;s Report...November 2022 Marty Kelsey
	Building and Grounds Comm Minutes November 15 2022 Draft Tami Love
	Compliance Committee Meeting Minutes November 2022 April Prado
	Assessment Report for Cybersecurity 2022

